
 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  
DILLINGHAM 

 
 

HMAM 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 

Council Members  

     Tracy Hightower (Seat A)  Chris Maines (Seat B)  Misty Savo (Seat C) 
 Curt Armstrong (Seat D)  Andy Anderson (Seat E)  Paul Liedberg (Seat F) 

 

DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

David B. Carlson Council Chambers  
Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576 (907) 842-5212 

 
SPECIAL MEETING 12:15 P.M. JULY 13, 2017 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

 a. Regular Council Meeting, June 15, 2017 ......................................................  page 3 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 
 

a. City Manager Report ..................................................................................... page 9 
 

6. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
  
7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2017-06, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing the Disposal of Municipal Property to the State of Alaska for the 
Dillingham Downtown Streets Rehabilitation Project  .................................... page 21 

 

8.  SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2017-06, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing the Disposal of Municipal Property to the State of Alaska for the 
Dillingham Downtown Streets Rehabilitation Project  .................................... page 21 

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2017-33, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Requesting FY18 Payment in Lieu of Taxes Funding from the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development and Repealing Resolution 
No. 2017-27  ................................................................................................. page 41 

 
c. Approve Action Memorandum No. 2017-12, Authorize the City Manager to Enter 

into a Contract with Elite Mechanical for Improvements to the Dillingham Sewer 
Lagoon and Dock Lift Station  ....................................................................... page 47 

 
9. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 

10. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Page 1 of 52



 
11. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
  
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a. Personnel Matter – City Manager Recruitment 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT  

Page 2 of 52



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 15, 2017 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 15, 2017 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 5 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Thursday, June 15, 2017, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Ruby called the meeting to order 
at 7:01 p.m.  This was preceded by a Workshop to present on the proposed FY18 City of 
Dillingham Budget and the March financial statements.  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby was present.  
 
Council members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 
Curt Armstrong  Misty Savo  Chris Maines  Andy Anderson 
Paul Liedberg    Tracy Hightower 

 
Staff in attendance: 
Don Moore    Janice Williams Ken Morton  Dan Pasquariello 
Navin Bissram 
 
Guests: Patrick Munson  Tim Pearson 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

 a. Regular Council Meeting, June 1, 2017 
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of June 1, 2017.  

 
VOTE: The motion to approve the minutes passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Resolution No. 2017-32, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Expressing 
Thanks and a Commendation to Superintendent Danny Frazier  

 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to approve the 
consent agenda.   

 
VOTE: The motion to approve the consent agenda passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda and amend Ordinance No. 2017-05 under agenda item Public Hearing 
and under item Ordinances and Resolutions to remove the extension (SUB-1).  

 
VOTE: The motion to approve the amended agenda passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 

Page 3 of 52



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 15, 2017 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 15, 2017 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 5 

5. STAFF REPORTS    
   

a. City Manager and Staff Reports  
 

Interim City Manager Moore reported on the following in addition to his staff report and 
supplemental report:  

 Twenty or so 50 gal. drums on the harbor foreclosed property: will take some effort to 
remove and remediate the sight; 

 Brownfields Program (cleanup and reuse of brownfields): Working with BBNA to apply for 
the program; 

 Dog Bite from loose dog on Wood River Road multi-use path; 
 Away from office June 30-June 12, will delegate management to City Clerk; 
 BBEDC’s Infrastructure Grant for Downtown Road Improvements; turned down but 

asking for reconsideration; 
 Covering Public Works: working on an interim plan which includes hiring a new director.  

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Commented sorry to hear Ken Morton was leaving as Public Works Director; and 
 Noted appreciated city was looking into the Brownfields Program.  

 
b. Standing Committee Reports  
 

Chris Maines for Code Review Committee: continuing to review all sales tax exemptions, 
removed some, condensed some, and, hopefully, by September will have an ordinance to 
present to the Council.  
 
Paul Liedberg for Finance and Budget Committee:  recommended several changes to the FY18 
Budget, and continuing to review a tobacco tax.   

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mayor Ruby opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2017-05, noting amended copies of 
Ordinance 2017-05 SUB-1 and SUB-2 were on the side table.   
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2017-05, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Funds for the FY2018 City of Dillingham 
Budget  

 
There being no comments the public hearing closed.  
 
7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

Page 4 of 52



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 15, 2017 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 15, 2017 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 3 of 5 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2017-05, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Funds for the FY2018 City of Dillingham 
Budget  

 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt the substitute 

Ordinance No. 2017-05 (SUB-2).  
 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2017-05 (SUB-2) passed unanimously by 
voice vote.  

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2017-31, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the City Manager to Request Competitive Bids to Construct 2017 
Water System Improvements Project   

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 

No. 2017-31.  
 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2017-31 passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 a. Citizen Committee Appointments  
 

1) Senior Advisory Commission, 1 Seat Open 
 

2) Planning Commission, 1 Seat Open 
 

There were no letters of interest on file.  
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum No. 2017-10, Authorize the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract with Wolverine Supply for the Senior Center Repairs and Upgrades  
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2017-10.   

 
VOTE: The motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 2017-10 passed unanimously by 

voice vote.  
 
b. Action Memorandum No. 2017-11, Authorize the City Manager to Extend a 

Contract with Consulting Alaska for Lobbying Services 
 

MOTION: Tracy Hightower moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2017-11.   

 
VOTE: The motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 2017-11 passed unanimously by 

voice vote. 

Page 5 of 52



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 15, 2017 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 15, 2017 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 4 of 5 

11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
Michael Bennett, local contractor, asked if there were any employee repurcussions when a 
member of the public on the denied services list was using the city facilities in sight of the 
employee.     
 
Mayor Ruby responded she was aware of the denied services list and expected it would be 
enforced.  Manager Moore reinforced that the public member should be run off the premises and 
if it was allowed it became a personnel issue basically violating an order.  
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Andy Anderson: 

 Questioned how the city enforced the denied services list.  
 
Manager Moore noted the public member would receive a vocal warning first and if they tried to 
force the issue the employee could contact the police.  
 
Misty Savo: 

 Commented she appreciated the commendation for Supt. Frazier; and 
 Noted she was sad Ken had resigned that he had made a big difference with the 

knowledge he had brought to the position, and thanked him for his services to Dillingham.  
 
Paul Liedberg: 

 Commented ditto on Ken.  
 

Curt Armstrong: 
 Commented he had nothing to add to what was already stated.  

 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Ruby: 

 Commented she thanked Ken also for his service;  
 Noted she appreciated having a citizen share their concerns, that it was not an easy task; 

and 
 Asked for a moment of silence to remember those lost since the last meeting especially 

Bobby and Marilyn McCarr’s daughter, Naomi.  
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a. Personnel Matter – City Manager Recruitment 
 

b. Legal Matter – Annexation Appeal 
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to enter into 

executive session to discuss Personnel Matter, City Manager Recruitment and 
Legal Matter, Annexation Appeal. [7:37 p.m.].  

Page 6 of 52



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 15, 2017 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 15, 2017 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 5 of 5 

VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Mayor Ruby invited Don Moore, Janice Williams, Tim Pearson, and Patrick Munson to the 
executive session.  
 
MOTION: Tracy Hightower moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to exit the 

executive session [8:52 p.m.]. 
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 8:52 p.m.  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk    
 
Approval Date: _________________  

Page 7 of 52



 

Page 8 of 52



Page 9 of 52



 

Page 10 of 52



Page 11 of 52



Page 12 of 52



Page 13 of 52



Page 14 of 52



Page 15 of 52



Page 16 of 52



 1 

City of Dillingham 
House District 37 / Senate District S 

 

~ 6/28/17 ~ 
(Day 164 - Overall)   (Day 13 - 2nd Special Session) 

 

30th Alaska State Legislature ~ 1st Interim 
(1st Special Session – Adjourned Sine Die on June 16th) 

 
 

JUNE  2017  –  LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
 

Cliff Stone / City Lobbyist 
 

~ 2nd Special Session began June 16th  //  Permanent Fund Dividend set at $1,100 ~ 
 

<><><><> 
 

With no budget in sight for Fiscal Year 2018, the governor had no choice but to call the Legislature back into 
a 2nd special session.  They burned through the 90-day regular session on their way to 121 days with still no 
agreement.  The governor called them into a special session on May 18th with them spending the next 30 
days with little to show for their efforts.  So June 16th saw them once again called in to take care of their 
business.  With a July 1st deadline looming for a government shutdown, the Legislature finally passed out an 
operating budget (HB 57) on June 22nd.  They had little choice, as a shutdown would have been extremely 
disruptive and chaotic.  Politically, it would have been suicide for each one of them!   
 
A week earlier they passed out the Mental Health budget (HB 59) for FY18.  All in all without a 
comprehensive budget plan, they once again will dip into the states savings account to fill the deficit.  That 
will be a draw of about $2.4 billion out of the Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR) account.  That account 
will be drained next year unless the Permanent Fund is restructured.  As it is, Alaska’s credit rating will 
undoubtedly take another hit because of the inaction of the Legislature. 
 
As soon as the budget passed out, the governor amended his proclamation to include HB 111 – restructuring 
the oil and gas tax credit system.  Little progress has been made as the Legislature has called a couple of 
technical sessions only.  The bill could end cash tax credits to the oil companies, though the state still owes 
them about $1 billion is past due amounts. 
 
On top of all of this, there is still no Capital budget.  That budget funds a variety of projects such as deferred 
maintenance on facilities, community block grants, village safe water and wastewater infrastructure projects, 
homeland security grant programs, and of course, the funding for transportation programs that includes 
airports, roads, and bridges. If it isn’t tackled during this special session, then a third special session is likely 
to be called for later in the fall. 
 
See Speaker Edgmon’s Legislative Report dated June 23rd for a brief analysis of important elements that 
were part of the final package of the operating budget.  The House was successful in fully funding education 
along with student transportation.  They also restored the cuts made earlier by the Senate to the Pioneer 
Homes.  There were quite a number of new positions approved for the Office of Children’s Services. 
 

<><><><> 

Page 17 of 52



 2 

BILLS ON THE MOVE 
 

Pertinent Legislation Passed during the Special Sessions 
 
These bills can be found at http://www.akleg.gov/basis/start.asp for a more detailed explanation. 
 
Besides an abbreviated title for the bill, I’ve provided a very brief synopsis of what the bill hopes to achieve.  
Once a law is signed, if there is an effective date clause, then the intent of the legislation is not recognized 
until that date is met.  In addition, it also takes the affected departments time to write regulations concerning 
a bill to ensure the intent is carried out. 
 
SB 100 / Municipal Liens; Tax Exemptions; Service Areas [ Chapter 9 SLA 17 ] 
An Act relating to municipal liens; relating to service areas in second class boroughs; relating to a municipal 
tax exemption or deferral for economic development property; relating to a municipal tax exemption for a 
fire protection system. 
 
SB 55 / Omnibus Crime and Corrections [ Chapter 13 SLA 17 ] 
This bill addresses a discrepancy between federal statues and Alaska law, bringing the state into full 
compliance with the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA). Alaska has been unable to enforce protective 
orders filed outside the state; SB 55 resolves that issue, making state and federal law consistent, and 
protecting vulnerable Alaskans regardless of where the protective order was filed. 
 
The legislation also directs law enforcement agencies throughout the state to report to the Alaska Department 
of Public Safety (DPS) how many sexual assault evidence kits have not been tested. The deadline is 
September 1st. By November 1st, DPS will provide to the legislature a plan to address the backlog of 
untested evidence. The goal is to incentivize meaningful reforms in how sexual assault evidence kits are 
dealt with in the future. 
 
SB 55 also clarifies Senate Bill 91, last year’s criminal justice reform legislation, to further empower law 
enforcement and other officials to take necessary steps to protect Alaskans. 
 
HB 23 / Insurance for Dependents of Deceased Fire/Police [ Chapter 14 SLA 17 ] 
An Act creating a fund in the Department of Public Safety; providing for payment of certain medical 
insurance premiums for surviving dependents of certain peace officers or firefighters who die in the line of 
duty; relating to contributions from permanent fund dividends to the peace officer and firefighter survivors' 
fund. 
 
HB 78 / Indigenous Peoples Day [ Chapter 15 SLA 17 ] 
An Act establishing the second Monday of October of each year as Indigenous Peoples Day. 
 
HB 159 / Opioids; Prescriptions; Database; Licenses (Awaiting transmittal to the Governor) 
Allows patients to execute a voluntary non-opioid directive, making it clear that they do not want an opioid. 
The confidential information would be provided to an individual’s healthcare provider or hospital, and is 
revocable at any time. Alaskans will also be able to request partial fills of opioid prescriptions from 
pharmacists, without voiding the remainder of the prescription. The legislation also limits first-time opioid 
prescriptions to no more than a seven-day supply with exceptions, strengthens reporting and education 
requirements for pharmacists and healthcare providers, and requires the controlled substance prescription 
database to be updated daily starting July 1, 2018, instead of weekly, to increase transparency and 
communication among providers. 

<><><><> 

Page 18 of 52



 3 

GOVERNOR'S CORNER   
http://gov.alaska.gov  

 
The governor’s office will continue to post press releases and other items of interest at the website above.   
 
 

<><><><> 
 

IMPORTANT DATES / DEADLINES 
 

The governor’s deadline once a bill has been transmitted is 15 days, Sundays excluded, to act on a bill if the 
Legislature is in session.  If the Legislature has adjourned, the Governor has 20 days, excluding Sundays. 
 

<><><><> 
 

COMMITTEE HEARINGS 
 
Go to the Legislature’s homepage – http://akleg.gov/index.php   Select a tab or link that suits your needs.   
 
Live on the Web 
Most committee hearings can be seen and heard on Gavel Alaska. It is broadcast on both local access TV and 
on the Internet.  You can also access online archives from the following website: 
www.360north.org 
 
Streaming Video 
Most committee hearings are also teleconference and available for viewing on the following website: 
http://alaskalegislature.tv  
 

<><><><> 
 

WEBSITES OF INTEREST 
 
2017 Legislators contact information http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/whoswho.pdf  
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/800numbers.pdf  
 
2017 1st Session Staff contact list http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/session_phone_list.pdf  
 
2017 House & Senate Committees http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/commlist.pdf   
 
Congressional Delegation websites – 
http://murkowski.senate.gov/public     www.sullivan.senate.gov      http://donyoung.house.gov 
 

<><><><> 
 

~ End Report ~ 
 
 

Enjoy your family and friends as we celebrate the 4th of July! 
~ Cliff  

Page 19 of 52



 

Page 20 of 52



Page 21 of 52



Page 22 of 52



Page 23 of 52



 

Page 24 of 52



Page 25 of 52



Page 26 of 52



Page 27 of 52



Page 28 of 52



Page 29 of 52



Page 30 of 52



Page 31 of 52



Page 32 of 52



Page 33 of 52



Page 34 of 52



Page 35 of 52



Page 36 of 52



Page 37 of 52



Page 38 of 52



Page 39 of 52



Page 40 of 52



Page 41 of 52



 

Page 42 of 52



Page 43 of 52



Page 44 of 52



Page 45 of 52



 

Page 46 of 52



Page 47 of 52



Page 48 of 52



Page 49 of 52



Page 50 of 52



Page 51 of 52



Page 52 of 52


	A 7.13.2017 Special Mtg Agenda
	M 6.15.2017 Regular Council Meeting
	D. Moore's Report
	Dillingham 2017 Lobby FINAL June
	O 2017-06 DOT Rehab Project
	R 2017-33 PILT Repeal 2017-27
	AM 2017-12



